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ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good evening, everyone. The County Council would like to
welcome all of you this evening and thank you for being here to share your manao on
the 2016-2017 Budget as presented by Mayor Alan Arakawa. Tonight we hope to hear
from you your concerns where you think we need to put some focus in as a Council
because we will be going into deliberations in about a week and a half. So it’s very
important to hear from you. On behalf of the County Council I want to say thank you
again once again. Our Chair... our Budget Chair, Mr. Hokama is on his way. I and most
of us have very, very terrific knowledge of the traffic situation coming in to West Maui
or going out of West Maui, whichever way you’re heading, and I keep praying that one
day soon we can solve this problem because you shouldn’t spend your lives in traffic.
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That’s something I really don’t agree with. However, with that being said I would like to
ask everyone first and foremost before we get started to turn off any noisemaking
devices. You know, if you got cell phones or any other noisemaking device, please be
courteous to us and your neighbor and turn it off so that or turn it on vibrate or silent
mode, whichever is accommodating, and that way we can get started. Testimony will
be limited to three minutes. Okay, and we will have.., if you want to sign up to testify,
off to my right is Troy Hashimoto. He is the EA with the Chair of the Council Mr. Mike
White so if you want to sign up with him, he’s right there ready to take your application
for testimony. Yeah, your testimony... sorry, I gotta apply for testify, right. Anyhow, at
this point I would like to turn over the introductions of the Committee, and as well, as
the Staff to your West Maui representative, Ms. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo. Mahalo, Mike. And thank you everyone for being
here and let me introduce the Members that are here. Vice Tempore is Mike Victorino
who just introduced everyone here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And to the right of Michael Victorino is Ms. Stacy Crivello of
Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And to my immediate left is Don Couch from South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And next to Don is Ms. Gladys Balsa of Upcountry, and at the
far end over there is Mr. Bob Carroll of East Maui. Aloha. And staffing us this evening
will be Greg Garneau, next to Ms. Crivello there on the corner, and going around the
table we have Ms. Clarita Balala, and Mr. Troy Hashimoto who is of Chair White’s office.
And then standing in the back up against the wall in the black there is from my staff.
Her name is Amie Stokes. If you ever call my office, there she is in flesh and blood and
you can put the name to the face now. So with that we shall open the floor.. .we shall
be expecting Chair Hokama of the Committee here shortly. But in the meantime, I shall
now open the floor for public testimony without objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. So ordered. So first person to testify I have from
Best Buddies is Chelsey Ramos. Ms. Ramos, are you here? Chelsey Ramos from Best
Buddies. There you are. Please come up to the podium and you’ll have three minutes
to testify. Over here, the microphone.
•

.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.
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MS. RAMOS: Hello, everybody.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And speak, yeah, into the microphone.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Speak right into the mic.
MS. RAMOS: Hijudges.
MS. BETTENCOURT: Hello. Thank you for letting me speak about Best Buddies and the
impact it’s had on me. My name is Krystaleia Bettencourt and I joined Best Buddies at
Lahainaluna High School in 2014. I’m currently the Chapter President and I’m matched
in a friendship with my buddy, Chelsey.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Tell her to speak into the mic so that we can record her,
please.
MS. BETJ’ENCOURT: Okay. Sorry.
MS. RAMOS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. BETrENCOURT: So sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go.
MS. RAMOS: I like to make friends and I like to have fun. Best Buddies is a good club. Sorry,
folks. Okay.
MS. BE’TTENCOURT:
Through Best Buddies I have gained crucial leadership and
communication skills that I will carry with me throughout my life and through the club
I’ve been able to personally become close to many of the buddies that I wouldn’t have
without it. So I urge you to support Best Buddies Hawaii so that many more students
and citizens of Maui can benefit from Best Buddies program of inclusion. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Next person to testify is Krystaleia
MS. BETTENCOURT: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is it? Bettencourt. Oh, is that you?
MS. BETTENCOURT: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay, very good. Thank you very much. Next...
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MS. BETrENCOURT: Say thank you.
MS. RAMOS: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You’re very welcome. Next person to testify is May Fujiwara.
Thank you and one moment, May. Sorry. Before you introduce yourself I want to
acknowledge Chair of the Committee, Mr. Riki Hokama. Thanks for making it,
Mr. Hokama.
MS. FUJIWARA: Good evening, Budget Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget Committee.
Thank you for coming to Lahaina to listen to our concerns. My name is May Fujiwara.
I’m here along with members of our Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens Club and you will
recognize them in their hot pink shirts. Our senior population on Maui is growing and
they rely heavily on services provided by MEO. Many no longer drive so they utilize the
MEO buses to take them to their medical appointments and to go shopping. Please
support MEO’s request for 5 percent increase to cover increased operational cost for
transportation, for the Human Service department, and the paratransit service. And
this will help the MEO drivers who have not had a pay increase since 2013. MEO’s fleet
is aging and many of its buses are older than the recommended service life so several
buses need to be replaced. One point five million dollars is needed for the building... for
building the maintenance shop on the Puunene property. MEO currently pays 12,000
a month for rent for its maintenance shop. The lease expires next year and will not be
extended. A 3 percent increase in funding is requested for the following MEO programs
to keep up with increases and operational cost and salary increases, the MEO
community services, Early Childhood Services, and the Business Development Center.
And thank you for supporting the funding of Phase 1 of the Lahaina Harbor Front
Project. After two years in the design and permitting phase, Phase 1 is ready to start
construction. This is Lahaina Town’s first County improvement project since the Front
Street Improvement Project in 1997, 19 years ago. We need to invest in Lahaina’s
popular harbor front that sees hundreds of visitors a day and over 50 cruise ships a
year. We ask for your support of Phase 2 of this project, which will include
improvements to the makai side and the Front Street side of the library. And the
landscape plan was developed by the Friends of the Library. The Lahaina Restoration
Foundation is coordinating this community plan project.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MS. FUJIWARA: These improvements will greatly enhance our seniors who are entertaining
at the harbor on Boat Days greeting the cruise ships. And please set aside again 1.5
million.
MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MS. FUJIWARA: Last, but not least, please try not to increase our taxes or increase charges
for services provided by the County. With family members of our seniors who will lose
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their employment due to the closing of HC&S and one of the major hotels, these family
members will probably come to us, right, for financial aid and then they have to move
in with us. And of course this will create quite a bit of hardship and stress for our
seniors who are on very meager fixed incomes. Thank you for allowing me to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, Ms. Fujiwara. Next person to testify is
Jane Agawa.
MS. AGAWA: Good evening. My name is Jane Agawa and I’m here on behalf of Vivian Ichiki
who is ill and not able to testify. So I will read her testimony tonight. Aloha, Budget
Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget Committee. My name is Vivian Ichiki, a 90
year old, lifelong resident of Lahaina and a long-time member of the Lahaina-Honolua
Senior Citizens Club. At my age I only drive around town and do not drive to the other
side. My husband, Hidemi, is 95 years old and can no longer drive so we depend on the
MEO bus to take us to our medical appointments on the other side. We also use the
MEO bus to go shopping. The drivers are very courteous and helpful. They pick us up
at our house, help us get on and off the bus, and also carry our purchases to our
doorstep. Please support MEO’s request for additional funding so these drivers can get
an increase in pay. They deserve it. Also, please increase the funding for the many
MEO programs that help our young people, our elderly, the needy, and our disabled,
which include the Business Development Center, Early Childhood Services, the BEST
Program, and the Enlace Hispano Program. The much needed improvement to the
Lahaina Harbor area will begin soon. Thank you for funding Phase 1 of this project.
Our senior citizens club, musicians, and hula dancers entertain there when the cruise
ships come in. Lahaina Restoration Foundation is asking for $1.5 million to construct
Phase 2 of this project which will improve the front and back of our library. Please
support their request. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Next person to testify is Arleen Gerbig.
MS. GERBIG: Good evening, everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The mic.
MS. GERBIG: Oh, sorry. Is that it? Can? Okay. My name is Arleen Gerbig and I am a
member, of course, of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens Club. I just had a total
replacement three weeks ago. I cannot yet drive a car. I had a doctor’s appointment
and two physical therapy appointments this past week. My husband had to work
around my schedule to take me to all these appointments. I am very lucky.
Unfortunately, a lot of kupuna I know are not as lucky. They have to depend on MEO
for their transportation. As you all know, MEO is in the transportation business. Many
kupuna depend only on them. If I did not have my husband, I would be in the same
position. I urge you to support the MEO transportation department finances in any way
you can. In my opinion, this is one of the most important functions provided by MEO.
MEO is asking for much needed replacement buses in this Budget. If you have ridden
some of those kupuna buses, you would know why. In some of them it is very difficult
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to have a conversation with your seatmate because it rattles so much. Riding to the
other side for one hour with the bus rattling all the time it makes you crazy. Again, I
urge you all to support MEO’s request for bus replacements. MEO also has a request
to build a transportation maintenance facility. The lease on the current facility expires
next year and will not be available to MEO again. Wouldn’t it be nice to be... wouldn’t it
be an ideal situation to have all the operations in one place in Puunene? In the
transportation business, drivers are the most important aspect. MEO drivers are
well-trained and very efficient in their jobs. As most know, drivers’ pay is also important.
Competitive pay is a requirement to keep these buses at MEO. I request for driver pay
increases in the Budget. I strongly urge you to consider it. Thank you all for your
support of MEO. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Gerbig. Take your time. Next person to testify
is Kiana Tuttle with the Boys and Girls Club.
MS. TU’TIiE: Good evening, everyone. My name is Kiana Tuttle and I’m a member of the Boys
and Girls Club, Lahaina. I’m here to encourage your support of our club in Lahaina
which supports many children that lets them have a place afterschool to go have fun,
meet friends, do homework, and other important things of child life. At the Boys and
Girls Club we have a lot of amazing programs. We have a bike program where we can
bike around and.. .well, we can practice riding bikes and we also have computers so we
can all do our homework afterschool and we have art teachers that come in and help us
all learn how to art.. .1 mean draw. And I really love the Boys and Girls Club and I thank
you all for supporting it these past few years. I so encourage you all to support it some
more this year as well. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Tuttle. Next person to testify is Mike Tuttle.
MR. TUTTLE: My name is Mike Tuttle. I’m a single parent of two children, one of which you
just met and I’m here on behalf of the Boys and Girls Club. I’d like to thank you for this
opportunity to express my appreciation in person for your support of the Boys and Girls
Club, and specifically, the Boys and Girls Club here in Lahaina. You should know that
this club is a real blessing to our community here. The staff is wonderful. They provide
our kids with more than just supervision. They serve as excellent role models and give
them mentorship in getting along and interacting with each other. This program... the
programs in art and music inspire the kids to be creative and gives them opportunities
to do so that they probably wouldn’t have otherwise. In a word to describe the Boys and
Girls Club I would have to say opportunity. Many of the services and programs they
provide, a lot of the kids probably wouldn’t have that opportunity if it wasn’t for the
Boys and Girls Club. The facilities are wonderful also. The computer room gives the
kids the ability to do homework as much of the homework from school today requires a
computer with internet access and not everyone has this at home. So the kids... a lot of
the kids are able to do homework at the Boys and Girls Club they wouldn’t otherwise
be able to do. And there’s a wide variety of other activities that gives the kids exercise
and keeps them active, building teamwork, and cooperation. And so to close I’d just
like to say that I’m sure I speak for many of the parents when I say I personally don’t
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know what I’d do without the Boys and Girls Club as a single parent and especially the
Boys and Girls Club here in Lahaina. And so I’d just like to thank you again for your
support of the Boys and Girls Club here in Lahaina and urge you to please continue
supporting this very valuable part of our community here. Thank you very much.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mahalo, Mr. Tuttle. Next person to testify is Gus Goodreau.
MR. GUS GOODREAU: Hi, my name is Gus. I go to Lahaina Boys and Girls Club. I’d like to
thank everybody for coming out tonight. It’s a pleasure. Anyways, the club is important
to me because the club provides computers and I don’t have one at home and I’d like to
thank the club for that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Goodreau. Next person to testify is Miriam
Kaauwai. Miriam Kaauwai. Oh, there you are. Aloha.
. .

MS. KAAUWAI: Hello, my name is Miriam Kaauwai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Use the mic.
MS. KAAUWAI: I did not see that. Hello, my name is Miriam Kaauwai. I’m a sophomore and
I go to Hui Malama because I was homeschooled before. My dad wanted me to skip the
four years of high school because he was worried that I would go down the wrong path
but he found Hui Malama and he thought it would be a good place for me. So far this
is my second year at Hui Malama. At Hui Malama we do a lot of hands-on learning. We
recently prepared for the Ag Fest so there were a lot of classes about kalo, how to grow
it, how to prepare it for cooking, and its many other uses. It was fun for me to learn
how to kui kalo, pound poi, and then be able to share what I had learned with other
people in the community. I also was able to participate in a course with another
nonprofit called Purple Maia that taught us the basics of coding and programming.
Because we did well in the course, three of us were given the opportunity to apply to a
summer program for coding that will take place on the Big Island. Another program in
which I participated was the Japan Wizards Tournament or Competition actually, sorry,
which took place on Oahu. This is a statewide competition that sends its winners on a
trip to Japan. Each team consists of three people and all the questions are about things
like politics, culture, history, and language. This is actually a high school competition
but because I was the only high school student on the team our team was allowed to
enter with me and two other middle school students, well, two middle school students.
We did really well though and nobody could tell our team was younger. I think what I
learn at this school will help me in the future because when you go to this school you
don’t just learn about textbook theories and academics. You learn about the land,
culture, and social skills that will help you someday in the real world. Sometimes I feel
like no one gives our school enough credit. It’s literally in some cases the last straw or
the last bit of rope to hang on to for some of us kids. I’ve seen what Hui Malama does
for the community and us kids that come here and it’s kind of sad because I’m sure the
school has done and helped save and turn around the lives of many children and their
families regardless of the reputation it holds among people my age. I also know that not
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everyone would take the time or have the patience and the kindness to try to help every
individual that comes through its doors. So thank you for supporting Hui Malama and
for believing in us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo. Thank you for your time. Next person to testify is
Kawika Uwekoolani.
MR. UWEKOOLANI: Hello, my name is Kawika Uwekoolani. I’m 14 years old and I live in
Kahului. I attend Hui Malama because I was homeschooled for two years and my mom
wanted to put me in a school, but not one with a lot of students since I would not be
used to being around a lot of people. Hui Malama is important to me because I’m
learning how to be responsible and work hard towards my future. I’m learning more
about Hawaiian culture and in most of my classes we’ve been preparing for Ag Fest that
we took part in at Maui Tropical Plantation last weekend. We learned about customer
service, handling money, and how to make display boards and sale signs. I really like
cleaning and pounding kalo. It was my first time doing kui kalo. It was also my first
time making chili pepper water. At Hui Malama, the teachers and staff find extra
incentive activities for us. In October a group of us went to Oahu to participate in the
Japan America Society of Hawaii... Hawaii’s Japan Day. We were the only neighbor
island school to be invited. We were able to try different Japanese culture activities like
tea ceremony, bon dance, dress in kimono, calligraphy, flower arrangement, and
Japanese traditional calculator. We also visited a temple. It was a good experience.
What we are learning and doing will help prepare us for the future. I have learned to
work hard and not being lazy and I’m getting a better point of view of the world. Being
at Hui Malama has opened my eyes to see that we have to work hard and clean our ama
and take care of our ama. We’ve got to keep it beautiful because if we don’t who will.
Some things I really enjoy learning at Hui Malama are hula and lei making. I enjoy
learning new chants and dances. My favorite is Oiwi E. Kumu Sissy from the Bailey
House Museum taught us that the chant originated from the Maori in New Zealand. We
also learned about how her father translated it from the Maui version into Hawaiian and
how it is a call for all the people to be proud of their home, culture, and history. I like
doing hula and learning how to dance even though it’s hot and sunny when we do it.
It’s worth it because it’s fun and Kumu Sissy is a really good teacher who teaches us a
lot. Thank you, Councilmembers, for giving me your time and listening and supporting
Hui Malama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo. Thank you for your time. Next person to testify is
Nohea Hoopii.
MR. HOOPII: Good evening. My name is Nohea Hoopii. I am 16 years old and I live in
Kahakuloa. This is my first year at Hui Malama. I am at Hui Malama to try and get my
GED because I had a hard time keeping up at my old school. At Hui Malama I am
learning how to cook, clean up after myself, and wash dishes. In math class I am
learning algebra and in Hawaiian Studies I am learning different oh or chants to prepare
for our hoike celebration in May. This past Saturday our school had a booth at the
Maui County Agricultural festival. We sold chili pepper water and coffee and taught
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little kids how to make finger puppets of Hawaiian birds. My favorite part was doing
kui kalo or pounding poi. We have been learning about the different varieties of kalo
and have also been able to go on excursions to working loi kalo or taro patches. My
younger brother who is not a student at our school was also able to come and join us
for the day and do these activities that I was doing. The hardest part of working at the
Ag Fest for me was trying to bring in... bring the customers into our booth and sell our
products. I learned that giving them a free sample of our chili pepper and then asking
if they would like to support our school helped to get people to buy our products. In
addition to learning skills that will help me later in life like how to talk to people and
sell things, I’m also preparing for my GED test. So far I have taken and passed my math
and science test. Next, I will take my social studies and then do my English part last.
After I get my GED I would like to do an internship learning renewal solar energy or
electrical. I am thankful that I have been able to attend Hui Malama because it has
given me the opportunity to do hands-on learning.., do hands-on learning. At my last
school I had mostly F’s, but at Hui Malama I have been able to do well and realized how
successful I can be. Before my mom opened my first semester report card she was ready
to take away my phone, dirt bikes, and everything fun that I have. After she opened it
and saw my grades she was very happy and I got to keep my phone.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. HOOPII: I would just like to say thank you for supporting Hui Malama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Goodreau.

Thank you.

Good job.

Next person to testify is Isaac

MR. ISAAC GOODREAU: Hello. My name is Isaac Goodreau. I would like to thank everybody
that supported the Boys and Girls Club and made it a better place. And when it’s a
better place I really support all the things that they done for us that passed these few
years and everybody is a really helpful person and I love it. And like the Boys and Girls
Club is the best place on earth. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Next person to testify is Katherine Smith.
MS. SMITH: Hello. I’m Katherine Kamaemae Smith and I’m a board member at the Lahaina
Restoration Foundation. My aloha to the Budget Chair Hokama and the Committee. I
am here today to urge you to add 1.5 million in the Fiscal Year ‘15-’16 Budget to
complete Phase 2 of the Lahaina Harbor Front Improvement Project. The first phase
construction is scheduled to be completed by September. Funding of Phase 2 is crucial
to realize the full improvements which are traffic flow, reverence for historic and cultural
sites, better public facilities, and a clean, safe harbor area that everyone can be proud
of. It is important to note that the major environmental permits for Phase 2 are already
done. Therefore, we could begin design on Phase 2 immediately and construction
shortly after the final design is done. Two million pairs of feet cause a lot of wear and
tear every year at the harbor. This is the hub of Lahaina Town. Improving walkways
and landscaping in the harbor area is a good investment in one of Maui’s key visitor
-
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attractions and the hefty revenues that it brings to Maui. Lahaina Restoration
Foundation is a robust organization with the skills to oversee this project. An exemplary
54-year track record of working closely with the County of Maui. We would work on
this project with the same energy and the same ethics that we apply to renovating and
maintaining the many museums and historic sites that are currently under our
management. I urge you to vote for adding 1.5 million back into the Budget to phase... to
fund Phase 2 of the Lahaina Harbor Front Improvement Project in this coming fiscal
year and thank you so much for the opportunity to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Fahnestock.

Thank you, Ms. Smith.

Next person to testify is James

MR. FAHNESTOCK: Good evening. I’m Jim Fahnestock. I’m the past president of the Rotary
Club of Lahaina Sunset. I’m here to thank the Council for funding the Third Saturday
Recycling Program at Lahaina Cannery Mall, to report the year-to-date results of that
program, and to request continued funding for Fiscal Year 2017.
Last year,
Councilmember Elle Cochran and Council Chair Mike White recommended adding
funds to the County Budget to enable this monthly recycling program. Without the
Council’s support there would have been no Third Saturday Recycling in West Maui.
The approved County funds were directed to Malama Maui Nui, a nonprofit organization,
to pay the cost of hauling recycling bins to and from Lahaina Cannery Mall. The Rotary
Club of Lahaina Sunset became a co-sponsor to develop and fund the marketing
program and to provide volunteers for these events. The monthly events began in July
2015. After nine months, I’m pleased to report the following remarkable results of the
Third Saturday Recycling Program at Lahaina Cannery Mall: 55,020 pounds of scrap
metal; 499 major appliances, including refrigerators, stoves, washers, and dryers; 1,271
electronic devices, including televisions, computers, stereos, and radios; 177 vehicle
tires; 3,362 household and vehicle batteries; and 19,460 pounds of glass, plastic,
aluminum, paper, and cardboard. These results clearly demonstrate the strong
community response. An average of 150 West Maui residents have delivered recyclable
materials to the four-hour events each month. An average of one drop off every 96
seconds. Often there is a line of vehicles at the registration point. Without this program
these recyclables would have ended up in the County landfill, or as some residents have
told us, in the County’s back roads. The Third Saturday Recycling Program is an
excellent example of a partnership to meet community needs. In addition to the
previously mentioned partners, we’ve had the important support of 5A Rent-A-Space,
the other West Maui rotary clubs, and Lahaina Cannery Mall.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. FAHNESTOCK: Thank you. To continue the Third Saturday Recycling Program next
budget year, Malama Maui Nui has requested funds under its Keep Maui Beautiful
Program. The Rotary Club of Lahaina Sunset urges the Council to support this request
and provide the needed funds to Malama Maui Nui. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Next person to testify is John Seebart.
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MR. SEEBART: Chairman Hokama and Council, my name is John Seebart. I’m representing
the Slower Road Neighborhood Group. I’m on the board of the West Maui Taxpayers
Association. I’ve been involved in some environmental things around. And tonight
though I’m here to advocate for the Police Department and.. .which doesn’t seem to get
a big slice of that graph that we see. We’d like to see more enforcement particularly on
the lower road. There’s still a lot of speeding. We’ve made progress with this over the
years and we’ve all pledged to drive the speed limit and no higher. And what we do is
we.. .if we see speeding commercial vehicles, we call their management and see if they
can help us slow the traffic down and beg with them that we don’t have to call the Police.
But we’d like to see more Police. And specifically, I’m informed that there’s a chance
that we could get bicycle policemen and we think that bicycle policemen on the lower
road would be an excellent thing. I mean I’ve been out there watching Officer Hodgens
and others with radar guns, and you know, on the internet it takes about five minutes
and that’s all they’re good for because everybody that is a bus driver or whatever knows
that they’re there and they never catch anybody or very few. So, but bicycle policemen
are moving around. They are there. They have a vested interest in the drivers to stay
alive and like the rest of us. But we’d really like to see that. In addition, I’d like to
support the West Maui Greenway Project from Olowalu to the mill and also the well up
there in Mahinahina. And that’s really about it. I’m sure I’m forgetting something. I’ve
been kind of out of the loop for a while, so... had a surgery last year. So thank you again.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Seebart. Next person to testify is Tony Bruno.
MR. BRUNO: Aloha, Mr. Chairman, Council. My name is Tony Bruno. I’m the General
Manager at the Westin Maui Resort. I’m also a resident here on the West Side. And you
know, I think... I came tonight to testify and to talk about Maui Visitors Bureau and the
funding and ensuring that we keep that economic engine going. I think what I take
away is we have a lot of great programs going on Maui and I feel really good listening to
the Boys and Girls Club, and the kupuna, and the high school students, to hear the
great things that are happening. And I’m really proud to be part of the Hotel Lodging
Association and knowing that we’re helping to fund many of these programs. I also
think that, as you know, many of the residents here on Maui are dependent on the
tourism industry. It’s providing tax dollars, jobs for some 20,000 residents. I think it’s
40 percent of the population directly and another total of 75 percent indirectly. So I
would just ask that that, you know, continue to fund the Maui Visitors Bureau. I think
while they’ve asked for a reasonable amount of dollars, I believe that even more dollars
can drive more tax dollars. And the more tax dollars that we can drive, not from our
residents here, but from our tourist, the better we can fund these programs that are
very beneficial and we just greatly appreciate your support on the Maui Visitors Bureau.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Next person to testify, Frank Derego,
Jr. Oh, I didn’t know you were a junior.
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MR. DEREGO: There was three of us, my grandfather... three Frank’s so we had to name me
Junior.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I didn’t know you were a Junior.
MR. DEREGO: Yes. There were three of us. Aloha, Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget
and Finance Committee. I’m Frank Derego, Treasurer and Member of the Executive and
Steering Committees for the Maui Bicycling League. Doesn’t look like I bicycle that
much though, huh? I am here to testify in support of the West Maui Greenway
Demonstration Project. First of all, I want to recognize all of you for the efforts that
you’ve done to preserve open space for our community island-wide. I think this group,
especially, has done a lot in that area and I want to commend your efforts in that regard.
And I think this greenway is another step in that direction. I think this particular project
will be good for the environment, good for our families, and good for the County’s
economic development. It’s good for the environment because it would be dedicated
green space that would provide an alternative transportation corridor for walking and
bicycling. It will encourage people to get out of their cars and enjoy the beauty of the
West Side in a new and exciting way. It’s good for our local families because it will
provide an opportunity for healthy, weilness, and family-centered recreation activities,
such as walking, hiking, and bicycling. They can do it as a family, you know. And
hopefully, if we can get the whole 25 miles, you can meet a lot of people on a road like
that. A good example is what’s happening on Kauai with their pathway. Last, but not
least, and I think this is a very important point, it’s good for economic development.
Economic studies in Canada and the United States, in the Midwest, in New York, in I
think Indianapolis also did something on their eight-mile pedestrian pathway and
walkway, have demonstrated increased economic activity in the vicinity of bike lanes,
greenways, and pedestrian pathways. Some increasing up to almost 50-100 percent in
terms of increased economic activity. So when you look at the demonstration project,
look at it as another step toward what you’ve already done very well, which is preserving
open space and giving our community healthy alternatives for recreation. Thank you
very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
McAteer.

Thank you, Mr. Derego.

MS. MCATEER: Aloha, Council and Chairman.
regarding...

Hello.

Next person to testify, Marilyn
I wish to testify again publicly

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just bring the mic down.
MS. MCATEER: Oh, sorry. I would like to testify again regarding the serious violations of the
County Code and Charter and the public trust that have occurred with respect to the
agreements with land developers that have shifted the cost of their developer’s roadway
infrastructure expenses to us, the taxpayers, which have been only been made visible
to the citizens of Maui County through the greatest efforts of private citizens. I first
became aware of this breach to the public trust and misuse of public funds when I
-
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attended a DOT meeting in Lahaina, wherein after the meeting I asked Roz Baker about
this issue. Her response was that the County was clearly been grossiy negligent for a
long time. After a lengthy conversation, her solution was that the County should
probably just admit their wrongdoings and just erase the thousands of developer
agreements or she stated a private citizen should just hire an attorney. I testified to the
Council on this issue on March 18 and Councilmember Couch informed me that an
investigation into the use of public funds to pay for private developer obligations had
occurred in 2013. I followed up with Mr. Couch’s office with a request for a copy of the
investigation and the resulting findings. Mr. Couch did not respond to my inquiry.
Mr. Couch, I see on page 833 in Mayor Arakawa’s Budget, that Phase IV of South Kihei
Road is bring improved with public funds. I see in a letter transmitted from Mayor
Arakawa from the Public Works Director David Goode that relate to budget revenues.
That record shows there are numerous developer agreements executed by Corporation
Counsel along this roadway that owe their fair share of the payment to these
improvements. Can you please show me where the revenue and collection of these
developer agreements are reflected in the Mayor’s Budget? The Mayor’s Budget is
required to be a complete financial picture for public review. Can you please explain
why you have not done me the courtesy of responding to my request for this so-called
investigation? I see for the first time volumes of contracts put together by Mr. Salem
that document the money owed back to the taxpayers. It is our belief
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MS. MCATEER: --as our Councilmember, these developer agreements should be tossed in the
trash such as Senator Baker suggested. That concludes my testimony and I will submit
it to you. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. McAteer. And before I call up the next
testifier, I’d like to announce the arrival of Councilmember Don Guzman of Kahului.
Good evening, Mr. Guzman. Next person to testifSr is Alan Farwell.
MR. FARWELL: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Maui County
Council. I’m Alan Farwell, General Manager, at the Hyatt Regency Maui on Kaanapali
Beach and I am here to support the continuing funding of the Maui Visitors Bureau. I
thank the ability we have as an island to fund through public funds along with the
millions of dollars that are vested by private hotel companies and other lodging
associations really adds value to every citizen of Maui. The tax revenues that come in
are substantial. You know what the numbers are and many of you have studied this
and looked at it and I think realized as we do that an investment in tourism is an
investment in all of the organizations that we support and many that we’re hearing from
tonight. I tell you when I’m out in the public and I meet someone and they ask me
where I work, I say the Hyatt, invariably, well, my mother, my sister, my cousin,
somebody they knew worked at the Hyatt and it’s true with all of our local properties.
So it’s just really become a part of who we are in the island, the hospitality industry,
and we really appreciate the efforts made and the sentiment toward making the
investment going forward. And I’d just like to thank all of you for that attitude you have
-
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and the sense that we can help and we can help each other. So thank you very, very
much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, sir. Next person is Megan Aberley.
MS. ABERLEY: Aloha, everyone. My name is Megan Aberley and I am the Unit Director at the
Lahaina Boys and Girls Club. We wanted to take the opportunity to sincerely thank
you for all the support you’ve bestowed upon the Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui,
specifically the Lahaina Club House in the past and currently. You have made a
difference in the lives of our kids and community. In the past fiscal year, we’ve had 402
registered members and have outreached to 1,500 more youth at community events and
schools. Out of the 402, a 120 participated in Our Money Matters Program, a program
designed to help teach you financial literacy. Three hundred twenty-three youth
participated in homework help and tutoring, while 301 participated in Project Learn.
It’s a program that is designed to combine fun activities with learning. Ninety-six
members volunteered in the Million Members Million Hours Served Volunteer Program
run all the way across the country. And a total of 200 members participated in other
community-based service projects, like cleaning up Kamehameha Ike Beach or 505, as
we like to call it. Through our food program we have served 750 meals and on top of
that 2,000 snacks, and that’s not including the 500 other meals we served during our
summer programs. Each meal was given to the youth at no cost. So your support is
helping youth be successful in academics, healthy lifestyles, and becoming great
citizens. This year also I’d just like to give you a quick update... a little story. The
Lahaina Club House we have a Youth of the Year competition. There are all the six club
houses of Maui and Lahaina won for the first time this year.
(applause).
Yes,
woohoo! So a really lovely young lady named Jamie Fujii. She’s 16 years old. She’s
been a club member for six years. She’s taken home the prize to Lahaina. We’re so
proud of her. And just really quick, it would be impossible to describe to you all the
activities and things we do in three minutes. But a quick little example is, today after
six months of hard work and planning, we had 140 volunteers come to the club house,
from the Ritz Canton, from Ace Hardware Lahaina, and from an insurance company in
Canada called Foresters Financial, and we did a huge renovation project. And you
know, I still have paint on me, I came straight here, and it’s just such a pleasure
.

.

.

.

.

--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MS. ABERLEY: --to get to do what we do. So once again, thank you so much for your continued
support. It really is making a difference and it just means so much to us. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Next person is Sylvia La Peana.
MS. LA PEANA: Good evening. I’m Sylvia La Peana and I work for Lahaina Adult Daycare
Centers. On behalf of Maui Adult Daycare Centers, we want to thank the private
foundations, as well as the County of Maui and Maui County Office on Aging, and our
local Maui United Way, for their financial support. We have always tried to keep the
cost to our clients’ families as low as possible. We are all aware our daily living expenses
-
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are continually on the rise. The cost for adult daycare services like living expenses are
also increasing. Even the increase in operating costs over the past several years. Our
mission is to provide adult daycare services to our clients in a family environment that
is safe and filled with love and provides support to their families and caregivers. Maui
Adult Daycare Centers can help you by providing a social daytime therapeutic program
for individuals who are frail, elderly, individuals diagnosed with Alzheimer’s disease or
other related forms of dementia, and adults who are physically and mentally challenged.
Like my mother in 2007, 2008, she attended Maui Adult... Lahaina Daycare and we as
family caregivers had less stress knowing mom was being cared for by loving staff and
was in a safe place. So we thank you all so very much for your continued support.
Thank you. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. The next person really needs no introduction, but
it’s Hans Michel.
MR. MICHEL: Hello, Elle. You brought the money with you? Okay. Make a long story short
I’m kinda concerned is the flood channel. You have $9 million something in the Budget
and I think it will be able to reach Lahainaluna Road the way it was planned. And since
the State doesn’t give any money or can you do something about the football field up
Lahainaluna is wonderful and the ditch they have over there, they cut ‘em open so the
water which will fill up from one ball area will all come down to the back, and if we
lucky, 505 Front Street will fill up. So the State when pull a fast one on you guys
without knowing. You can go see yourself. It’s nicely built. In the back Bishop Estate
is not cleaning the ditch and I don’t think they ever will. So it’s up to you guys. That’s
why I asked you if you brought the money because we need Lahainaluna Ditch... I mean
the flood channel complete in Lahainaluna. It’s a must, otherwise Lahaina get flood
out. We had it ‘07 was the worst and since then Lahaina is so dry and practically extra
dry. People seem to forget about the flood channel. And the other thing is I believe they
wanted to build a tower or some kind of communication tower for the Police Department.
Because one day they would.., the contractor came dig up by the treatment plant and I
was kinda concerned. I when hear the noise and all this so I go look and here guys
digging up above my house. So they are looking a place where they could put the tower
for communication. Paul Meyer from the Water Department when inquire but nobody
ever got back to him. The problem is this the area where they would like to put the
tower will interfere if Water Works have to use a helicopter to go up in Kanaha Intake
for repair or whatever. So Police no can put a tower just any old place because the guys
think it’s a nice place. Have to be practical and look how things can be used. But
somehow nobody got back to the Water Department. You know, the words who gives a
hoot. Somebody do this, some other guy do this, and by the fall, it’s all done and then
you no can make the changes. So I leave it in you guys hands. I don’t know
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. MICHEL: --if you guys have time or no time, but I bring it up to you, Hokama, because I
know you got plenty time, yeah. Have a good one. Thank you. Bye bye.
-

16-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 6, 2016
West Maui District

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Michel.
Paltin.

Next person to testify is Tamara

MS. PALTIN: Aloha, Council. Thank you for coming out to Lahaina. I just wanted to start off
and say I’m in full support of Phase I of the Hamakua lands purchase at Peahi and also
full support of the Third Saturday Program. Save Honolua Coalition probably pulled
out about 50 televisions from the grassy areas and brought it down. So now we
coordinate with them at every cleanup. I’d also like to say that looking over the Budget,
I noticed that the goals have increased to provide high-quality 911 ocean rescue service
along the coastal waters of Maui and that was previously a pilot program. I noticed that
there’s seven expansion positions provided for that, but I think that’s too little. Ideally,
there would be 14 expansion positions because to provide high-quality 911 service you
need a driver and a grabber. Two times within the past few years, rescue craft operators
at Kanaha have had to pull out a çlead body by themseif. Now, you don’t ask a firefighter
to drive the fire truck and put o~ft the fire at the same time. That’s the same thing of
what you’re asking our rescue craft operators to do, especially in high surf
environments, it’s not possible to drive the ski and grab the body of an unconscious or
dead person. I understand there’s fiscal constraints and so, you know, a good
compromise would be to possibly hire seven full-time and seven half-time positions to
fill in as needed. But with the current staffing being only to provide high-quality
lifeguard services at our designated County beach parks and only adding seven more
positions and adding on the coastal waters of the entire island, what kind of position
that essentially puts us in when we’re short-staffed is choosing between guarding our
beach and answering the 911 call, and I think that’s a huge liability to the County. Up
until this point our beach parks have always been the priority and we never leave them
during working hours. If we are to make the move to Fire, the Battalion Chief has
directed us that the 911 call is the priority and that we are to leave our beach parks. I
know that the Fire Chief testified that the captain would fill in, but realize that the
captain once a week goes to a Captain Meeting in Kahului and you guys all drove out
here today. You know what the traffic is like coming back. They get our paychecks in
Kahului. If we service our jet skis, that’s on West Kuiaha Road. Twice within the last
month when I was captain we had jet ski calls simultaneously at Canoe Beach and
Fleming’s Beach. If you’re counting
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MS. PALTIN: --on the captain to fill in those blanks, it’s not a realistic situation. In Fire, you
can hold personnel back from leaving so they’ll always have a team of three. You can’t
do that with ocean safety because we’re not 24-hour services.
MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MS. PALTIN: Who shows up that day is what you get. So if we’re gonna run short-staff, it’s
gonna be either at the expense of the beach park or the 911 system.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Paltin.
-
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COUNCILMEMEER GUZMAN: Chair? Can I get a clarification? The pilot program, when did
it start?
MS. PALTIN: The pilot program started in July of 2002 and it’s never been addressed in the
Budget. There was never been any mention in the Budget of a 911 operation.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I did bring that up during Fire.
MS. PALTIN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Paltin. Next person to testify is Sara
Foley Bezane.
MS. BEZANE: Well, thank you all for coming to Lahaina. Good to see you. I’m Sara Foley
Bezane and I’m speaking on behalf of the Maui Friends of the Library and the Lahaina
Restoration Foundation, and in favor of the Lahaina Harbor Front Project Phase II. This
year’s Budget funded Phase I and Phase I is kicking off on April the 16th so the
construction... that phase has to do with the water front area. Construction starts this
month and will make a huge difference to that water front. Phase II which requires
another 1.5 million can start very quickly after that in the fall. We’re ready to go with
the landscaping of the Maui Friends of the Library’s landscape plan for the Front Street
side of the Lahaina Public Library. This has been percolating for a long time. A lot of
people have been involved and we’ve had great, great community cooperation on it. So
we are ready to go in September and I’m hoping that we can get our Phase II money in
place so that we can do that. The library landscape will have native plants and trees
and a focus on kalo because the area next to the library was the King’s taro patch. The
landscape plan also includes interpretive panels. We are also putting a new sidewalk
on the front of the library. At the moment, the sidewalk is very narrow. It’s not the
same as along the street as a whole. This will make a big difference in preserving the
landscaping. And the Harbor Front Project, it’s phenomenal and in Phase I, if you get
a chance, go to the opening, see what’s going on there and check it out as it develops.
But Phase II is really important. We’ve got to fix that library landscape. It is such a
wonderful piece of property and it’s sitting there looking pretty sad. So let’s do it, get
behind it, let’s get this going in September. And I want to thank you for supporting this
project. It’s an important one all the way around. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Ms. Bezane. Thank you. Members, we’re
gonna take a brief recess to the call of the Chair. I believe our na kupuna bus has
arrived and will be departing us. I want to thank them very much for attending as
always. Thank you, May. So we are now in a brief recess.
(gavel)...
..

RECESS:

7:04 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:11 p.m.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
(gavel)... Will the Budget and Finance Committee please
reconvene and up next is Ms. Theo Morrison from Lahaina Restoration Foundation.
.

MS. MORRISON: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.(a lot of background noise from the gallery)...

(hits gavel three times)...

MS. MORRISON: Thank you. Aloha, Chair Hokama and Committee. My name is Theo
Morrison, Executive Director of Lahaina Restoration Foundation. I’m here tonight to
urge you to support the addition of 1.5 million to the County Budget for Phase II of the
Lahaina Harbor Front Improvement Project. As you know, the good news is that
construction for Phase I will be starting this month, possibly in a week and a half, and
just waiting for a few more little things and definitely send everybody invitation to the
opening and the blessing. And we can... so that project Phase I will finish in September
and this is the area directly in front of the boats where the flagpole used to be. We can
absolutely start construction of Phase II in the next fiscal year since all our big
environmental permits are now complete. From my discussions with everyone last year,
I think you are familiar with the actual project so tonight I want to talk about three
things: 1) the community planning process that led to this project; 2) the need to invest
in the district that is contributing the largest amount of property taxes to the County of
Maui; and 3) why LRF is such a good partner for the County of Maui. In 2002... oh,
sorry, 2012 and ‘13, LRF conducted nine months of community meetings to plan this
project. At the very first meeting I was challenged by a member of the public. I was
asked, so what is your agenda and what is LRF really trying to do? I answered that I
had no agenda. That LRF felt that the Lahaina Harbor area was very important
historically and culturally and that in its present state it was worn out, trashed,
congested, and unsafe. I said LRF had plenty of projects to work on and was simply
asking the community if they wanted to work together to make the Lahaina Harbor area
an area that we would all be proud of. They agreed to move forward and after nine
months we published a plan. The three most important things that the community
wanted to see are reverence with the historic and cultural sites, management of the
congestion in the area, and making the area safe for all users. Number two, one of the
best planning meetings we had during this project was held in the middle of the project
site at the makai library lawn. We set up a table and sat there for five hours while
various members of the community came to share their manao. Not only did we hear
from a broad section of the community, we experienced firsthand the undesirable
behavior that occurs in that park on a daily basis. It was shocking. Undesirable
behavior thrives in undesirable locations. This area is the heart in the historic district.
The County needs to protect its investment
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MS. MORRISON: --and work together with the community to replace bad with good. For the
past 54 years, LRF has been working in Lahaina to preserve, protect, and restore our
historic and cultural sites, many of which are owned by the County of Maui.
-
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MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MS. MORRISON: LRF is a strong and financially stable nonprofit. Hundred percent of the
money we are requesting will go to the actual project, not to my salary, overhead, or any
other LRF expense. LRF is pleased to be working on this project with the Maui Friends
of the Library and we’re working to fulfill the planning objectives that the community
has set forth. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Morrison. The next testifier is K&eaumoku
Kapu.
MR. KAPU: Aloha, Councilmembers. Interesting I follow up right behind Theo. I’m mostly
here in support of the Lahaina Harbor Front infrastructure project. Got involved with
it years ago and I’m kind of one those sticklers that had to look at the plan on whether
or not this was feasible enough to provide for a special kind of need. And looking at
how the impacts of the harbor have changed drastically throughout the years, it’s always
been a passion for me to share many times in front of the County on how I feel about
the register... the National Historic Register on our historic properties are being
degradated [sic] to a point as to where we may possibly use that National Historic
Register straight across the board. So small little town, historic property. So we got
involved through Aha Moku of Maui and Na Aikane 0 Maui Cultural Center with
Lahaina Restoration, Friends of the Library, to give ‘em our points, and you know, our
vision as pertaining to what we hope to achieve and acquire, especially for like the
restoration of Kamehameha’s taro patch along the historic cultural properties that are
along those areas. That not only being degradated [sic] but also being forgotten. So to
keep the character and identity of that town we got involved to make sure that these
things are never missed. You know, everybody talks about the economic stimulus
comes in tourism. The tourism is fine. They airight. What I’m more worried about is
providing a place for a lot of our residents, especially in the harbor front where it’s
majorly impacted by cruise ships where a lot of our residents that come from Lanai and
Molokai, it’s always a nuisance for them. So providing a place with shade alongside
those areas so we can cater to a lot of our residents, a lot of our local residents that
coming from Molokai and Lanai, is a must for us. Especially when we go to visit families
over there, there is no place for park, the congestion is really crazy, so many times we
came in front. I’m glad that the first phase of the project is well and done. I mean in
total support of the second phase of the project. I’m also glad that out of 19 years of
waiting that Lahaina finally, you know, in the synopsis I’m looking there’s $44.035
million in the Budget, but then it’s a synopsis. So I really hope and
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-seven seconds.
MR. KAPU: --I really hope that this County Council really look at the need for the West Side
because for me I’d seen a lot of the changes in this town... hasn’t quite helped pertaining
to what our mission is all about to instill the dignity and pride of our people that
--

MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
-
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MR. KAPU: --live here. And at the same time people, you know, they benefit for those things.
So help us protect our town. Support the Budget 2000.. .the $1.5 million for the Lahaina
revitalization project. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo, Mr. Kapu. Next person to testify, Anna Goodreau.
MS. GOODREAU: Good evening, everyone. My name is Anna Goodreau. I’m a parent and
volunteer at the Boys and Girls Club Lahaina. Thank you for having us and thank you
for your support past, present, and hopefully, future. As a parent and volunteer there
I can’t say enough good things about this program. I know the parents appreciate it so
much and I think the community should as well, just knowing that our children have a
place to go to where they are truly loved and cared for, guided to be great members of
our society, and yeah, a place to have fun as children should. A lot of parents work
more than one job and they really don’t have any other options, and along with actually
working so many jobs, losing that time to really invest in their children so that they do
become positive members of our society. So I feel just so blessed that we have this
program for our kids because I think there would be a lot of lost people out there if we
didn’t especially for future generations. I know some of our kids come from wounded
families; families where they’re not really getting the love and like that they deserve to,
you know, become great people. So again, can’t say enough positive things about this
organization and just ask for your continued support. And thank you again for your
support in the past. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Next up is Junya Nakoa.
MR. NAKOA: Howzit. Thank you guys again for coming to Lahaina. I was only going to talk
little bit but that wen jam up. Boys and Girls Club I going relate because my daughter
went there five years. I no need worry. She go catch the bus from Lahaina go over
there, take care of ‘em, pick up. Awesome people take care of my kids. All the pink
ladies and guys over here. My mother-in-law was in these guys. They come pick her
up, take her wherever she gotta go. I mean awesome. The MEO Head Start same thing.
My babies wen start off over there. Yeah, plenty stuff that just came up wen throw me
off. Okay. Thank you. Yeah. Now I going get down and dirty. Okay. Like da kine said,
where the money? Again, you guys know I bother you guys for the housing, okay,
especially in Lahaina. Okay, I know there’s money. I found money in the Budget. Okay.
I did the research. I asked for the Housing Director in Human Concerns for look for ‘em.
They tell me they cannot find ‘em so I spend eight hours by myself. I catch the bus,
look for ‘em, come home on the bus, I find ‘em. Paper this high. I look for ‘em. I find
the money. I find this thing, the credits... housing credits pay in lieu of, and it says for
Lahaina. Okay. I mean kinda passionate, but. There’s allocated lands through the
Kaanapali 2020 that was for this place by Puukolii. I was on the board 2001 so I know
plenty. So you guys cannot tell me nothing I don’t know. Okay. ‘Cause I gotta go make
nice to my... the nice old lady so she can give me back the papers. Hopefully, she never
throw ‘em away. But get the thing out there. Okay. Now, the tourism guys came over
here talk about getting help. Okay. Automatic, tourism is awesome, but I think we gave
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them enough breaks, okay, with this tax credits and housing credits and in pay lieu of.
Okay. The bruddah from Hyatt... the GM bugga, he said da kine 52 homes supposed to
be built from just that little extension, but nothing’s been built. Physical homes zero.
So go get the damn, oh sorry, get kids, go get those houses. I mean it’s in the Budget.
It’s somewhere in there floating. You know what I mean, no make me do parameters
that I don’t want to do because that’s our tax dollars that I asking for go fight against.
You know, same thing like with that whole sewage thing. You know, we get the
double-edge sword. Okay. The sewage is screwing up our water. The fishing land that
we fish for how many years, okay. As our tax dollars that pay for the sewage, but then
when we get sued by whoever, we gotta pay again.
—

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. NAKOA: I’m just saying please do the right thing. No make me do what I have to do
because I will. I going do one peaceful demonstration you guys going hear about ‘em. I
going wake up the tourist. I going educate the tourist. BEA is
--

MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MR. NAKOA: --Bruddah Educating America, and I going take it down to the tourist, and the
tourist going come grumble to the hotels, hotels going come grumble to you guys. And
then as like... ‘cause I know they when pay in lieu of and the money is there. Okay. I
don’t know if it’s still there but I know it’s supposed to be there. So this is the Budget
Committee that’s why I came here. Okay, I going educate all you guys there... out there,
get the money, come back me up down da kine my people demonstration and educate
these guys. I mean... eh, call me up, guys. You guys get my e-mail, you guys get my
number. I call you guys every time. Get it done. I helping you guys do what gotta be
done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Nakoa. Next person to testify is Joseph Pluta.
MR. PLUTA: Thank you very much, Chairman Hokama and Budget and Finance Committee.
I get to follow up that. Mine will be a lot less passionate. Although I’m here.. .Joseph
Pluta, Vice President, currently of the West Maui Taxpayers Association, speaking on
behalf of the Board of Directors. I submitted written testimony so you all have it in front
of you, and I guess it’s important to me to tell the purpose of my testimony for the record
beyond this written testimony or not. You have it? Alright, so that’s good. So I can just
make a few comments. I thank you again for coming here. I know you were in the
traffic...stuck here some of you. Well, I know many of you have been doing it for a long
time so I’m not telling you nothing new. You know what the problems are... are there,
but one of the things that has been on the books for some time is affordable housing,
workforce credit housing, I think was somewhat alluded to just previously. There’s been
a number of planned projects here in the West Side where you’ve got thousands of
workers who would work here and live here if there was housing for them here. But
since there isn’t, they have to commute from Central Maui and East Maui, back and
forth, back and forth, three hours a day, tying up thousands of cars in the roadway,
-
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which you saw and you continue to see. And you will continue to see until we get these
affordable workforce housing projects completed here, many of which could be
underway now or should’ve been underway now, but there’s another new... show me the
water or something problems they cannot get an exemption from, which hopefully the
Budget... the Water Committee and the Council is working on may be making some
exceptions with that. I think when these developments that have a reasonable amount
of workforce housing included in them, they need to have some way to be exempted
from that long-term source because the long-term source is backlogged in the water.
There should be a long-term source already, but there hasn’t been any water
development ready because the large amount in part is the Water Department’s
engineering staff has been short and the County engineers have not been sufficient to
do the water projects. Lapsed projects that were made to do things were lapsed because
there was not enough County engineers so they just didn’t get done and the money just
goes away. Yes? I don’t know. But we need to have.., the Water Department needs
help, needs more money, and I’m really afraid when I hear the Water Director saying,
well, we’re short five engineers and we don’t know if we’ll ever be able to do what’s
necessary to be done even if we got the money again. And so the long, continued saga
with not having the water will continue, unless we start being creative and you’re the
body that can be creative and changing the laws, making exceptions, somehow
expediting workforce housing to actually happen here, and make some exceptions to
that water bill when a reasonable
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. PLUTA: --when a reasonable amount of affordable housing is involved in the equation.
Thanks again for all the hard work. You got a tough job ahead of you. God bless you
all. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Pluta. Next person up is Eric Poulsen.
Mr. Eric Poulsen, are you here? No? Another call for Eric Poulsen? Okay, then how’s
about Jim Foster?
MR. FOSTER: It’s always difficult being one of the last. Thank you very much for coming over.
I know it’s always kind of a difficult trek coming over from the other side and hope on
your way home tonight there’s no obstructions and you get home nice and safe. My
name is Jim Foster. I’m a resident of Lahaina and I’m the Principal Broker of Chase ‘N
Rainbows Real Estate and have actively represented sellers and buyers of properties in
the Kahana Bay area for many years. Many of the owners of the various Kahana Bay
condominiums use the condos as their primary residence and have retired here and
many are used as second homes and vacation rentals. All of the complexes in the
Kahana Bay area generate millions in general excise tax, transient accommodations tax,
real estate property tax, Maui County transfer tax when sold, HARPTA tax when sold
(assuming a gain) and many other taxes that are a source of income for Maui County,
the State of Hawaii, and the Federal government. The condominiums used as second
homes and vacation rental, including time shares, produce additional tax revenues in
the millions as a result of the monies spent by the tourists who stay in these condos
-
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and continue returning year after year. If the erosion problem is not mitigated or
resolved, these tax revenues will evaporate. I have observed the continuous erosion of
the beach and shoreline of Kahana Bay for many years. I have friends from Seattle that
have returned to the Kahana Reef condominium complex since they were married on
the beach at Kahana Reef 40 years ago, but now there is no beach but there is a seawall.
The erosion process has occurred from Kahana Village all the way down to the Kahana
Bay Beach Resort. The owners of Hololani Condominiums have spent thousands of
dollars over the last seven years trying to coordinate with Maui County, DLNR, and the
US Army Corps of Engineers to obtain permits to build a revetment system to control
further erosion which is dangerously close to the structure, but have a temporary
revetment system in place that has to be repaired annually at substantial cost to the
owners. The owners have seen this uncertainty substantially impact the value and
ability to sell their property and will continue to have a negative impact on all the ocean
side complexes unless the County, State, and Federal agencies can agree to a joint
solution and proceed to implement it. Time is of the essence relative to the current
situation. I’m here tonight to support.. .or in support of the Planning Department budget
item request of $750,000 to establish a US Army Corps of Engineers partnership with
Maui County under the Continuing
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. FOSTER: --thank you, under the Continuing Authorities Program that will be bring
assistance for Kahana Bay, Maui. We are concerned about the impacts of proposed
shoreline armoring within Kahana Bay, including acceleration of erosion along
neighboring properties. As an alternative to armoring
--

MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MR. FOSTER: --we continue to support the concept of regional beach restoration for all of
Kahana Bay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. And next person to testify is John
Schofield.
MR. SCHOFIELD: Good evening, Councilmembers. My name is John Schofield. I am the
President of the Hale Malia Homeowner’s Association. We live between Kahana and
Napili, down in the Lower Honoapiilani Road, and my request is simple this evening.
We’re looking.. .you all have a letter that we’ve forwarded.. .we sent to Ms. Elle Cochran.
We’re looking for your support in getting road paving done on the Lower Honoapiilani
Highway. The roadway there it seems that from Napili Hau Road to Kapalua has been
paved, from Hui E to Kahana’s been paved, but in between our roadway’s been left for
15-20 years. It’s just been patched every year and at this point the road patches are no
longer supporting the road traffic that we have and it’s become a hazard there. We have
a lot of tourist traffic plus local traffic up and down the local highway and we’re just
waiting for somebody to get hurt because of the automobiles they get out of control
because they hit these potholes and they lose their steering. It’s something that needs
-
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to be done desperately and we know that you have money in the road paving budget for
the coming year and we ask for your support and your help in seeing that this part of
the highway gets handled this upcoming year. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Next person is Terry Schroeder.
MR. SCHROEDER: Aloha, Finance and Budget Committee Members. My name is Terry
Schroeder. I’m here to support the Kahana Bay Beach Restoration Project is a line item
for $750,000 that could go to that effort. My wife, Marie, and I are owners and full-time
residents at the Sands of Kahana which is part of the Kahana Bay area. We’ve owned
since 2002. We’ve lived here since 2011 and when we first bought our condo in 2002,
we could walk the beach from S-Turns all the way to the Pohailani which includes the
front in front of the Hololani. A few years ago we could only make the walk from S-Turns
to the Royal Kahana ‘cause the Hololani beach is going away and they’re walking on the
seawall permit as you know. In the last few months with all the large surf events that
happens we can now only walk from S-Turns to the Valley Isle which is adjacent to the
Royal Kahana because now the Royal Kahana phase that they did for their beach
restoration is now gone due to the beach erosion. So with that we understand that this
one-time funding will match the same dollar amount for the Federal government to cut
in half the required various environmental studies that need to be completed to plan,
design, and implement this beach restoration project. And with this we believe that the
beach shoreline protection is very important, not only to us as residents, but to Maui
County as well as Hawaii residents because the beaches are free to everybody, right. So
beaches do provide safe access for ocean recreation. S-Turns Park is frequented by
residents and visitors for ocean entertainment such as surfing. The beach supports the
habitat for many marine and terrestrial organisms, including coral reefs, reef fish, as
well as the honu. There’s a large group of green sea turtles that actually reside right in
front of S-Turns Park and their water is being polluted. If the beaches go, the tourist
will go. You’ve already heard this. They’ll go elsewhere and spend their vacation dollars
somewhere else, and when they do that, they will let people on social media know about
the lack of beaches here in Hawaii. So mahalo in advance for your support of this
Kahana Bay beach restoration. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you very much. Next person is Gregg Nelson.
MR. NELSON: Aloha, Chairman and Committee Members. Good to have you with us here. I
know you have a tough, tough job visiting all over the County and hearing the wonderful
efforts and organizations that have been presenting here tonight. It’s always good. I
always enjoy coming to these meetings because you do learn a lot. My name is Gregg
Nelson. I’ve been a resident here on Maui since the late 70’s and I’ve been blessed for
the last 13 years to be General Manager of Napili Kai Beach Resort. And I just wanted
to put in my two cents worth on the Maui Visitors Bureau budget proposal as proposed
by the Mayor. Hope you will give that full consideration. I would love to have your
support on that. No matter how you look at it, tourism is our economic engine here on
Maui and it supports so much of what we have here as far as our day-to-day living and
all of the organizations that are going on here. I know the funding of course comes from
-
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the transient accommodations tax allocation that comes back to the County and there
are many, many good reasons for dividing that up for a lot of different allocations, but
please do consider supporting that as you go forward in your Budget considerations. I,
myself, small property, 163 rooms, we spend about $500,000 a year in marketing and
advertising. That’s a drop in the bucket compared to what a lot of larger properties do.
But we just couldn’t make it a success without the efforts of the Maui Visitors Bureau.
They take that money and do so much with it. So appreciate your consideration. Thank
you. You’~re doing a great job.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Nelson. Next person is Steven Ashfield.
MR. ASHFIELD: Steve Ashfield. Aloha and welcome to Lahaina Civic Center, the home of the
Maui Jim Maui Invitational Basketball Tournament. The best preseason tournament
and the maker of champions for college basketball. Well, looks like the sugar cane train
is not coming back. So what can the County do about that? Hey, maybe we can buy
the easements or the land or whatever they have that they used for tracks, take out the
tracks, recycle ‘em, recycle the boards, and now we got a place to put down pipe. Pipe
for what? Pipe from the reclamation center to get rid of the water instead of pumping it
into the ground, pumping it along the train track. Tell the people if you want to hook
up to this, we’re gonna hook you up, you hook up for free, and we won’t charge you for
the water. Imagine that? A county saying, we won’t charge you for the water. Why
don’t we charge ‘em, because then we don’t need meters. If we got to put meters in, that
cost everybody a lot of money. You tell somebody I can give you free water for irrigation
of your property, the cost for you is for you to get it to your property. We’ll bring it down
the track, you get it to your property. Free, you don’t have to pay sewer, you don’t have
to pay the water bill. You just.. .you get free irrigation. The other thing is a line item for
the Maui Invitational Tournament. Right now the money comes out of Parks and Rec
for West Maui. Last year there was talk about not using the overtime and overage and
not having anybody there to work during the tournament because they didn’t want to
pay overtime. Well, at tournament time they decided they had to do it because you got
ten million people watching on TV. You couldn’t afford not to have somebody there if a
lightbulb broke. So they decided we would need somebody there for all the games. That
tournament brought in $17.2 million in three days to the County of Maui and
surrounding areas. Also, there’s 36 hours of TV time which is worth millions more.
Cost about $30,000. Put that in as a line item. That way they can’t say we can’t have
anybody there. Somebody will be there to work the tournament. If you look around,
War Memorial was built two years before this place. Look around here. Go upstairs
and look. You’ll see a little difference between what this place looks like and what War
Memorial looks like and that’s from getting cleaned, getting painted every year and ready
for the Maui Invitation from the County staff and the West Maui Parks staff.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. ASHFIELD. Now the last thing is to get that $30,000 back my usual thing, please raise
the cost of all the social halls and the.. .that we rent out by 50 percent, cut the deposits
by 50 percent, and it actually cost the people less to come in here and use this place.
-
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MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MR. ASHFIELD. That way the charge.. .if they ruin the place and break something, we can
collect it by just charging them. So thank you and welcome to Maui... Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Ashfield. Next up to testify, Jaydina Kapu.
MS. KAPU: Aloha. My name is Jaydina Kapu. I’m here to talk about my son going to MEO
Head Start. He’s in the program and he’s been progressing a lot better than how he was
with me at home. You know how kids can be, you know. But I’d like to thank you guys
for funding the MEO Head Start and I hope you continue to fund it. Thank you and
have a good night.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And next is Ty Emmanuel.
MR. EMANUEL: Welcome to the Members of the Budget and Finance Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you can use the mic.
MR. EMANUEL: Oh, sorry. Welcome to the Members of the Budget and Finance Committee.
My name is Ty Emanuel and I’m the President of the Royal Kahana AOAO. On behalf
of the owners of the Royal Kahana Resort, I would like to thank the County for its
support in matching funds for the Kahana Bay Sands Source Survey which is just
underway. This is an important step toward finding a community-based solution to the
chronic beach erosion issues that face the nine resorts in the Kahana Bay community.
For the past several years it’s become apparent to all of us that beachfront erosion in
West Maui is accelerating. Whether it’s due to global warming and the rising sea level
or El Nino, it’s a problem we must face and a problem we must find solutions for
collectively. The Royal Kahana is a 236-unit beachfront condominium complex situated
in an area recognized as an erosion hotspot. We have spent years working with the
County to develop an acceptable plan that would protect our property from further
erosion and is also sensitive to environmental needs of the entire bay. Since last fall
our association has spent nearly a half million dollars to protect our property from
further erosion. Despite that, this past month sustained, excuse me, sustained north
swells washed away our beach causing damage to our pool deck and other structures.
Over the past six months, the Maui County Planning Department has partnered with
the Army Corps of Engineers to better understand the coastal erosion problems that
face the nine resort complexes on Kahana Bay. In an earlier study, the Corps of
Engineers concluded that there is a Federal interest in protecting those properties and
potentially becoming involved in finding a solution to this ongoing problem. I’m here
representing the owners of the Royal Kahana to ask that the County approve the
Planning Department budget item request for $750,000 to establish a partnership with
the Army Corps to study and hopefully solve the bay’s chronic erosion problem. This
funding will be matched dollar for dollar by the Federal government to have the cost of
the various environmental studies that need to be completed to plan, design, and
-
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implement a regional beach nourishment project for the condominium complex
properties along Kahana Bay. Without beach nourishment the likely other option is
hardening the remaining condo shorelines which will quickly result in losing the
remaining beach. That beach is not ours. It is part of the public trust and we need help
to preserve it. This may sound self-serving because of our current precarious situation
but I firmly believe preserving the beach serves the public interest. It preserves the real
tax base, hospitality economy benefits, and public use. Nobody says let’s go spend the
day
--

MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. EMANUEL: --nobody says let’s go spend the day at a seawall. The County Council match
also leverages potentially up to $5 million of Federal funds to implement the project for
Kahana Bay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Next person is William Germoso and looks like
Claudia Lara will translate.
MR. GERMOSO: Mi nombre William Javier Germoso.

.

.(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: My name is William Germoso and I am from the Dominican Republic. I came here
from Puerto Rico to work on Maui.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: I had a work-related injury at the Hyatt Hotel here on Maui.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.

(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: And then on the first of November I had another accident.
MR. GERMOSO:

..

.

(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: The company abandoned me. They cut my contract because at that point I was
no longer of use to them and I had a lot of work-related injuries and I was in a lot of
pain.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: I didn’t know where to go, what to do. I was really desperate especially because of
the reality that I didn’t speak English.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.(speaks in Spanish)...

-
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MS. LARA: And as you know, with all of my injuries.. .1 mean I have a family in Puerto Rico
that I still am sending money to and I’m responsible for and I couldn’t get to Puerto Rico,
unable to work as well there.
MR. GERMOSO:

.(speaks in Spanish)...

..

MS. LARA: So I entrusted an individual who happened to speak Spanish and this individual
led me to MEO.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.

(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: And that program through MEO was specifically Enlace Hispano which is basically
available to help anybody that... it doesn’t necessarily speak the language and is of
Hispanic origin.
MR. GERMOSO:

..

.(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: And as you can imagine, once I got there, I was able to really orient myself and
figure my way out through Maui and I got the help that I needed and it was a huge relief
for me.
-.

MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.

(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: And all of the people that I was working with, once that contract was ended, a lot
of those people returned to where they were from and I was left here without knowing
anybody and really Enlace Hispano became sort of like my family.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five seconds.
MR. GERMOSO:

.

.

.

(speaks in Spanish)...

MS. LARA: And I want to thank all of you guys for taking the time to listen to me and I want
to especially thank, you know, the program because if it wasn’t for the program, I
wouldn’t be where I’m at right now receiving the care that I am getting and getting the
justice that I basically deserved. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And Ms. Lara, are you up next to testify?
MS. LARA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Claudia... are you Claudia Lara?
MS. LARA: Yeah, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So you’re not testifying? You’~re on the list.
-
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MS. LARA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, fine. Next person to testify is Lee Chamberlain.
MR. CHAMBERLAIN: Good evening, everyone, and thanks for coming to Maui.. .West Maui
specifically. Thank you. My name is Lee Chamberlain. I’m here in support of CBS
3240, the West Maui Greenway Pilot Project for $1.5 million in the Budget for 2017.
The project in my view is a very worthwhile project that will be beneficial to the
community for safety by saving lives from risk of injury or death, reducing risk of County
liability while increasing economic growth providing a safe and fun alternative activity
for tourist and residents alike that is healthy to the environment and the person. There’s
a wide community support and is additionally supported by key landowners as well as
many West Maui unified organizations such as the West Maui Taxpayers Association
and the West Maui Rotary organizations to name a few. This concept has been included
in the State Plan, the Maui Island Plan, the West Maui Community Plan, dating back to
the mid- 1990’s but has never been implemented. This project is a pilot encompassing
a public/private partnership of the abandoned lower cane haul road from Olowalu to
the sugar mill smokestack in Lahaina and exclusive to any other place on Maui and has
become known as a hidden gem among the many that have seen and experienced it.
The project’s received endorsements to date from Senator Brian Schatz, Lieutenant
Governor Tsutsui, State Senator Roz Baker, State Representative Angus McKelvey,
Mayor Alan Arakawa, Maui Hotel and Lodging, Rotary Club of Lahaina Sunset. I would
like to also lend my additional support to the funding of the Maui Economic
Development Board. The Office of Economic Development grant is proposed in the
Fiscal Year 2017 Budget. Maui Economic Development Board has been an invaluable
resource and phenomenal inspiration support to me both personally and professionally.
Maui Economic Development Board continues to lead and inspire innovation in
business education in our community and Maui Economic Development Board,
specifically Frank DeRego, has lent endless number of hours in support to assist our
efforts in bringing our vision of a bike-friendly community to Maui. Mr. DeRego and his
partner, Gerry, I know... to work tirelessly to keep and help numerous people learn and
grow by providing services to those people seeking personal betterment and
self-improvement. Not only have they provided great assistance to me personally, I know
they have contributed immensely to others by conducting seminars and conferences
and bringing experts in many fields to Maui to help those seeking those very essential
elements benefiting many. Thank you for received my testimony and I urge you to fund
CBS 3240, as well as the Maui Economic Development Board’s grant request.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Chamberlain. Thank you. Next up is Saman
Dias.
MS. DIAS:
Aloha and good evening, Councilmembers.
Thank you, Chair and the
Councilmembers, for taking the time off your busy schedule to come to Lahaina to hear
us testify. I’m Saman Dias, Chair of the Maui Bicycling League. I thank you for the
opportunity to provide testimony in support of West Maui Greenway Project, Project CBS
3240, 1.5 million in 2017 Budget. I am here to ask Council support in approving design
-
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and construction of Phase I of West Maui Greenway Project. In the past, Maui hasn’t
shined in the bicycle- and pedestrian-friendly categories because the island has a
limited number of designated multi-use pathways. An alternative transportation path
is badly needed on Maui where roads are not designed for multi-uses and shared by
high volume of local residents and tourist. The visitors are often unfamiliar with the
roads and their rental vehicle creating evermore of a very dangerous situation. West
Maui in particular provides the newest... fewest alternative routes for bicyclists and
pedestrians. I believe more needs to be done to ensure a better experience for everyone.
There’s a lot of history around the backdrop of the mountains along the West Maui
Greenway. We will be able to preserve the history and share those stories with our
children and local community and visitors. West Maui children will have a way to use
the path by walking and biking to commute to school and school activities. We can also
use West Maui Greenway as an emergency route when there are major accidents and
roads are closed. West Maui residents, visitors, and local economy would benefit from
designating a multi-use trail for walking and cycling in the community. Offering this
type of recreation has health benefits to trail users that would also help increase
property values and enhance the safety of those riding a bicycle and walking. West
Maui has the advantage of being able to make these type of multi-use trails immediately
available by opening up, designating, and linking existing cane haul roads as car-free
pathways. We have applied for different type of grants and already have received a grant
from National Parks Services. We recently held a charrette workshop and we had
community and the County and some of our Councilmembers, thank you, Elle Cochran,
as well participated. And many of the Councilmembers, including Elle Cochran, Don
Couch, participated on some of the rides to explore the West Maui Greenway.
MR. GARNEAU: Two minutes, forty-five second.
MS. DIAS: And this project seems to have gotten attention because of the local history, private
ãommunity, and County partnership. Approval of this project will show County
commitment and will help getting us Federal funding and other
--

MR. GARNEAU: Three minutes.
MS. DIAS: --to complete the 25 miles. Again, I ask your support and approval of the West
Maui Greenway Project of 1.5 million. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Saman. And next person... thank you, next person
to testify is Kaimaile Makekau.
MS. MAKEKAU: Hi County. Thank you guys for coming. I’m the owner of Mahinahina 0
Moku Hui at the top. I’m having an issue with the gate and you guys all know that the
water treatment center is over here. There’s people breaking the gate every week now.
I have hunters going up there. I don’t really mind the hunters, but the gates being
opened and the water treatment is up there so we should kind of protect it. You know,
somebody... anybody could go over there and pollute the water. I’ve been having issues
with people coming up there with shotguns not knowing that my, you know, my castle—
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people call the shack—but it’s in the middle of the bushes, it’s very small, and discreet
and nobody knows it’s there. And they’re just shooting their guns aimlessly, you know,
just po, po, no boars, no nothing, just practicing guns, and it’s really unsafe. I feel really
unsafe up there just because they break the gate every week. Also, I caught like a bunch
of little kids swimming in the punawai. I had called.. .1 had let people know. I’m also
on the protecting the water up there. I don’t know who it was. I talked to David Taylor.
I talked to Maui Land and Pine. Somebody has been spraying roundup but I think we
got that kind of handled last time I spoke with you guys. But just a lot of weird stuff
and the gate is so flimsy they just bust it open. So if we could fix that, that would be
super, super cool, just to protect the water and protect me. You know, and we also have
like other people up there that are living up there. There’s like a few nice, young people
up there... living up there. And another issue is I’m starting a farm up there. I’m trying
to at least... I’m gonna try on my own funds. I got some little funds and help from
somebody for tractors and stuff like that. There’s enough land up there that maybe we
can make at least Maui self-sustainable. I’ve been busting my butt taking, you know,
plastic out of the ground. It’s like ten feet deep. It’s really hard but I’m just gonna work
with that. But also I spoke with Mr. Miyabuchi and I guess there’s not a lot of engineers
for water and all that and there’s a 40-inch pipe and there’s a valve and stuff. And so
they said they’re going to come by and help me because if I blow that up, I take the
water for all Kaanapali and Lahaina and I don’t want to do that. But they haven’t been,
you know, they haven’t been... they said they~re going to meet, but me and my friends
we’re just waiting ‘cause we need the water for the farms. So maybe if you guys could
ask them to meet up with me sooner ‘cause they just keep kind of avoiding my calls and
stuff, then I could start farming and make Hawaii self-sustainable. And then, yeah,
that’s about it so thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Malcekau. And next is Norm Bezane.
MR. BEZANE: Aloha, County Councilmembers. First of all, I would say that I’m not going to
be asking for any funding for my April Fool’s project which you got an e-mail on and
which appeared in Lahaina News. I’m not gonna ask you for that because it’s funded.
In any case, I want to mention three things. You heard from Theo Morrison, you heard
from Mr. Kapu, two very respected opinion leaders here advocating your funding of the
Harbor Project. They should be supported. They represent the community. Second of
all, I happen to... my wife happen to work on the beautification of the Lahaina Library
lawn and their project has been folded into the Harbor Project. It’s in the next phase.
But if you fund the first phase, hopefully you’ll be able to.. .the project will move forward
and be able... they will be asking for funding for the second phase. You should keep in
mind that you know that this is a very historic place. King Kamehameha walked where
the library is, so did Queen Kaahumanu, and we need to respect the Hawaiians. We
need to pay more attention to the fact that we owe a lot to them and we owe them the
beautification of this area. Lastly, couple other things. I would urge you if funding is
involved to support the concept of a County manager. We need to be more efficient in
this County and I’m a huge advocate of that. There are many... there’s been some
criticism that not too many people testified. Well, the people that have testified are
opinion leaders and they should be listened to in my view. And the last thing is our
-
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Rotary Club has had five meetings on water quality in the area, devastating information
on the quality of our water statistics, and I would urge the County to consider, you
know, pay more attention to this. And if funding is involved, if fixing injection wells is
involved, which it is, I would urge you to be really serious in fixing this issue because it
impacts our tourism industry if we destroy the beauty of this island. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Bezane. And next is Mr. Paul Laub.
MR. LAUB: Aloha, mai kakou. I’m here because my main interest is keeping the Hanakaoo
Cemetery really nice looking. And it had fallen through the cracks and they were using
poison on it and the poison was blowing with the dust onto the beach where the children
and people were playing. I stepped in and said, listen 19J take care of it myself. So I was
taking care of the cemetery, and frankly, I can’t quite keep up when it’s really growing
fast. So sometimes it’s just spotty, sometimes it doesn’t look so good. So last year I
came before you and I asked you to put forth $4,000 to the Public Works Department
for them to take care of the cemetery. This was not effected so this year I went to the
Mayor’s Office to ask them to put it in as a line item for Public Works. They said you
guys up at the West Maui Veterans are taking care of it, why don’t we give you the
money. I don’t care. We don’t need the money. We’d take the money if you wanted us
to do it, but, or just give it the Public Works and have them do it. I will do it for free as
much as I can. It’s a matter of pride. And frankly, I’m hoping someone is taking care
of my ancestors while I take care of these ancestors. Just want to thank you very, very
much for thinking about it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Laub. And VU make a last call for Mr. Eric
Poulsen if he had stepped out when I called his name earlier. Mr. Eric Poulsen? If not,
then that looks like the last person signed up to testify this evening. And so, Members,
looks like without any further public testimony, we shall close testimony.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I guess, Chair, you want to close us out? And with that
members of the community, thank you folks for being here and sharing your manao as
Mr. Victorino mentioned in the opening comments and we shall do our best to assist
you in all the things that you are asking. So mahalo, have a great night, and everyone
drive safe.
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:05 p.m.

-

33

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 6, 2016
West Maui District

APPROVED:

~
Budget and Finance Committee
• bf:min: 160406-West Maui

Transcribed by: Clarita Balala

-34-

